CCMCF BOARD MEETING
March 25, 2024
10:00 a.m.

Call to Order
Roll Call
Introduction of visitors and guests
Public Comments (limit 3 minutes/person)
Additions/Deletions to Agenda
Approval of the Agenda
Approval of the Minutes
Financial, Phil Alt and Jeremy Franks
a. Check Register
b. Recent Census
c. IRS Audit- ERC
9. Corporate Compliance
10. CECA Grant
11.1T Update - Policies, Forms, Job Descriptions, etc. are being uploaded
12. Covid Update - no resident cases
13. Threat Training Completed — AAR will report next month
14. MMCFC Media/Communication Grant Update
15. Complaint Survey - March 19
16. Lawn Contract
17. LARA - Police Report
18. Congressman Walberg’s Senior Day
19. Resident Rooms — Acrovyn Walls
20. Joint Provider — April 9
21. HCAM Conference March 20-21
22. MMCFC Conference June 10-13
23. Open Meetings Act
24. CCMCF Administrator Search
25. Employee Roster
26. Any Other Business That May Reasonably Come Before The Board
27.Board Member Comments/Announcements
Adjournment

REEE PN



MINUTES FOR:
UN DICAL FACILTY BOARD MEE

February 26, 2024 10:00 a.m.

In attendance: Jennifer Rentfrow (Board Chairperson), Vicki Vaughn (Board Vice-Chairperson), Jeff
Carmen (Member), Linda Duchon (Interim Administrator), Jeremy Franks (Director of Finance), Phil
Alt (Accounting Consultant), Rayann Franco (Recording Minutes).

The meeting was called to order by Jennifer Rentfrow at 10:04 a.m.
Roll call: Members present - Jennifer Rentfrow, Vicki Vaughn, Jeff Carmen

Guests for Public Comment: Commissioner Roseann Marchetti, Commissioner Mary Howie, Rie
Shimada.

Public comment: None
Additions/deletions to Agenda: None

Jeff Carmen made the motion that the agenda be accepted as presented. Vicki Vaughn supported
the motion. Motion passed unanimously. Vicki Vaughn made the motion to go into closed session
before the meeting adjourned to discuss employee termination. Board members, Linda Duchon
and Rayann Franco to be present. Jeff Carmen supported the motion. Motion passed
unanimously.

Jeff Carmen made the motion to approve the minutes as presented. Vicki Vaughn supported the
motion. Motion passed unanimously.

Marshall Grate provided a presentation for Clark Hill for attorney services. Marshall Grate
explained that the law firm has provided services for the facility for several years. He explained that
Clark Hill works for several municipalities and can provide the facility services in healthcare law,
human resources and can help with the administrator search. Marshall Grate reported that the
facility does not have a lot of labor or legal issues.

Andy Rothman from Lebenbom and Rothman provided a presentation for attorney services. Andy
Rothman stated that the firm can provide a variety of services including debt prevention,
collections, guardianship/conservatorship, regulatory for surveys, civil monetary penalties,
appeals for potential licensing sanctions and IDR’s. The fee is $325.00 per hour. Postage and
copying fees are at no charge. There is a flat fee for asset searches. Grant Pecor stated that he
concentrates in labor issues. The Michigan Medical Care Facility Council has negotiated a
discounted rate for his services.

Alan Panter of Yeo & Yeo provided a presentation on the recent audit. Alan Panter reported that the
audit went well. There were no audit findings or suggestions. He explained that it was a clean audit
and unmodified opinion. The net service revenue has increased due to increased occupancy and



an increase in the Medicaid rate. Operating expenses have increased this year. Jeff Carmen made
the motion to accept and file the audit from Yeo & Yeo. Vicki Vaughn supported the motion.
Motion passed unanimously.

The check register was reviewed. Vicki Vaughn made the motion to approve the checks in the
amount of $489,045.66 and the direct payments of $379,105.50. Jennifer Rentfrow supported the
motion. Motion passed unanimously.

Phil Alt reported that the Medicaid settlements have started to come in. There will be future
settlements.

The financial statements were reviewed. Jennifer Rentfrow made the motion to acceptthe
financial statements as presented. Vicki Vaughn supported the motion. Motion passed
unanimously.

Rayann Franco provided a report for Corporate Compliance. The facility was found to be in
compliance for the latest audit.

Linda Duchon reported that there was a complaint survey by the State on February 21%. The survey
was regarding a complaint and the drug diversion. The facility was found to be in more than
substantial compliance.

Linda Duchon distributed the IT agreement that will be presented to the Board of Commissioners
next month. Jennifer Rentfrow removed herself from the discussion and voting. Jeff Carmen made
the motion to approve the IT agreement as presented. Vicki Vaughn supported the motion. The
motion passed unanimously. Roll call: Yes (2) Jeff Carmen and Vicki Vaughn, Abstained (1)
Jennifer Rentfrow.

Linda Duchon stated that there was one resident who has COVID. There has been an outbreak of
influenza. KN95 masks are being warn. Dining and activities are closed. Linda Duchon reported

that there is an adequate supply of PPE for this outbreak. Linda Duchon stated that it has been a

challenge to staff with due to staff having COVID and influenza.

Linda Duchon stated that Michele Brady has started but was unable to attend this meeting due to
the cases of influenza in the building. Linda Duchon stated that a RN nighttime supervisor has
been hired.

Linda Duchon reported that Theresa DeLau will be at the facility as a consultant to Infection
Control. Theresa DeLau will be reviewing policies and procedures.

Linda Duchon stated that Superior Health did a survey for infection control. Concerns are being
addressed.

Linda Duchon reported that the Joint Provider Conference will be April 9t.



Linda Duchon reported that the ad on Indeed for the Administrator’s position has been removed.
Jeff Carmen suggested that an external search firm conduct the search and recruit candidates.

The contract for Linda Duchon was reviewed. Jeff Carmen made the motion that the contract be
extended for one year and the hourly rate be increased to $71. Jennifer Rentfrow supported the
motion. Motion passed unanimously.

Vicki Vaughn made the motion to enter closed session. Jeff Carmen supported the motion. Motion
passed unanimously. The board entered closed session with all board members, Linda Duchon
and Rayann Franco present at 12:34 p.m.

Jeff Carmen made the motion to enter open session. Vicki Vaughn supported the motion. Motion
passed unanimously. The meeting entered open session at 12:41 p.m.

leff Carmen made the motion to adjourn the meeting. Vicki Vaughn supported the motion. The
meeting adjourned at 12:42 p.m.

Respectfully submitted by:

Rayann Franco

(Board Chairperson) (Administrator)




EL EL %L WL WL VL SL SL %L ¥L WL ETL M. W TL WL VL ¥L €L €L €L ZL M. M. OL OL 69 OL €9 £0lz SAVA TVLOL
e 0 0 0 0 0 L L b F b L F V b F b F b P L L O O O O O 0 O 9L (vinn) ebejuenpy s1eD yilesH papun
ZLZL ZTL TV T T TV ZL ZL TL Z TV TV ZL ZL ZL EE TV EL ZL ZL LL ML ZL M L LL 2L ZL £be (dd) Aed aeaud
S T S e 2 T T T A A S A A R A T T A A A ] 4 (o8wW) sso1) enjg uebiyoiy
L bbb b b b L L L 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 06 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 (WINW) a1eaipapy Yur WeaH (N ueipusy
9 9 9 § ¥ ¥ S v € € € ¥ ¥ ¥ § § S§ § ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ € € &€ & § ¢t Bzl (vow) v eieopepy
Ty v Ev E¥ Y V¥ Ev E¢ E¥ BV Ev v IV TV W S € € E€F Cv Sy € CF © EF £ v v TV orzL (i) preajpapy
o 0 0 t V F F P b b F b b F F F F ok F F VL F L L O O O 0 0 4 (vwa) ebejueapy anjg snig papy
oL oL b b b b B L0 9 0 0 0 0 L oL b b b oL oL oL E OV VoM £2 (WHW) esealpaly yur yiesH |y
§ § § § ¢ § € 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 L L 9 9 9 9 8 9 8 9 9 9 g g 691 {WIW) prealpap HuIg YileaH I
bbb b b L b L L L 0O 0 0 0 O O 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 zi (YHW) sbejueapy aieaipapy euewiny
€ € € € € € € € € € € E € £ € € € € € € € € € £ 7 T T T 2 z8 (WH) preaipepy eaidsoyy
L L e e O o T A A T T T S A 62 (Lnwy) any
skeqg lafey

_mm um_hu 92z mu_vm_nm_au__,u_om 2_2_2_2_2_3_2 N_._E_B_m_u_..._m m_v_m_m__, 08 :Ag Arewwing
IV :uoyedypien pag Iy :siehed |y ool [y :wun

L # abeg yzoz Aaenige4 Buipug - snsuan Ajyjuop syueiy Awalep tlesq
Jafed Ag - poday snsua) pajielag 13 s2:ZL9) awny

fyoed aieg |ealpajy funo ssen Ajioe4 au1eg [eolpely fluno ssen $Z0Z ‘gL Je| :ajeq



toie vile ez 0Liz 9€ilz LZ60L SAVA VLIOL
0 0 0 0 14 74 (v3am) ebejueapy sieajiapn
9l 0z 11 £9 34 951 (¥nn) ebejueapy aied yyeeH penun
0 0 [44 [ 15 0 4 (INN) s[eAeT preipa OHN
Ve £vE Siz 344 012 esvl (dd) Aed 8jeAud
0 0 0 1 zlL £l (Hd) ebejuenpy sieaipepy UieaH Ajuoud
6z Ie ‘e 6L 0 o143 (0gn) ssou] anig uebiyaiw
L 0 0 0 0 L (W) a1e01papy Yur uNeaH | Uepuapy
8zl gLk 291 191 2l £0.L (voW) v a1eapapy
(1124 89EL 6151 :1548 Zsvl 1669 (vin) plesipapy
1z L S 8z zL Ll (va) aBejueapy anig snid payy
£z 6 65 z 0 £6 (NHW) 8Jeotpainl U7 YiteaH I
691 98l vzl 0zl Il 9L (WIW) preoIpsiy Ui yiesH [N
zl 0 9z 74 [-r4 98 (WHW) ebejuenpy aieoipsyy BuBlWNK
8 29 9 9 0 eve (WH) peaipapy eardsoq
] 0 L [+ € oy (12) esueinsy| [elIBWWOD
6Z IE It [11 34 4s1) (LnY) oiny

Jafeyg
_ ve/qed ‘ yejuer _ £¢/92Q _ E€Z/AON _ £2A20 skeq jo # :Ag Arewwng

llY :uonesyMe) peg IV isiehed |1y Hoojd |1V :Hup

1

| # abeg

Ajljioey aze) [eajpapy Ajunoy ssen

$20Z Arenigaq Buipu3 - snsuen Alaeay
lefed Ag - yoday snsus) pajiejaq
R1oe4 a1 [eolpe Ajunoy ssen

syuelq Awasap :asq
13 $S:gL:9] tewl)
¥Z0Z '8l 4B :3jeQ



Date: Mar 18, 2024
Time: 16:07:08 ET

Cass County Medical Care Facility
Check Register

User: Jeremy Franks 2/1/2024 - 2/29/2024 Page # 1
Check Numbers: 1-989999999  Bank: Operating Account
Check Vendor Name Remit to Reference Check/Reversal Amount Type Status
Number Date

DPB77 MetLife MetLife 20741 21112024 $8,120.73 Payment ¥
DPB78 Internal Revenue Service Intermnal Revenue Service 2075-1 21712024 $4,623.61 Payment Y
DPB879 DELTA DENTAL DELTA DENTAL 2076-1 2/12/2024 $5,966.87 Payment Y
DP88D Internal Revenue Service Internal Revenue Service 20771 2/14/2024 $67,093.10 Payment Y
DP881 HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK 20781 2/15/2024 $268.00 Payment Y
DP882 HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK ~ 2079-1 2/15/2024 $90.00 Payment Y
DP8B83 HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK 2080-1 2/15/2024 $30.00 Payment b &
DP884 HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK 2081-1 2/15/2024 $20.00 Payment Y
DP885 HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK 2082-1 2/15/2024 $15.00 Payment Y
DP886 HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK ~ 2083-1 2/15/2024 $0.75 Payment Y
DP888 MERS MERS 2085-1 2/21/2024 $56.194.26 Payment Y
DP889 INDIANA DEPT OF REVENUE INDIANA DEPT OF REVENUE 2086-1 2/21/2024 $5,190.83 Payment Y
DP880 Intemal Revenue Service Intemnal Revenue Service 2087-1 22172024 $4,581.01 Payment Y
DPB91 ALERUS FINANCIAL ALERUS FINANCIAL 2088-1 2/21/2024 $3,572.23 Payment Y
DP892 MICHIGAN DEPT OF TREASURY MICHIGAN DEPT OF TREASURY  2088-1 2/20/2024 $22,278.11 Payment Y
63752 ABES PLUMBING INC ABES PLUMBING INC 2047-1 2/2/12024 $1,815.00 Payment

63753 ALLEN MOTT ALLEN MOTT 2047-2 2/2/2024 $100.00 Payment

63754 Capital One Commercial Capital One Commercial 2047-3 2/2/2024 $426.36 Payment

63755 CARELINC MED EQUIP & SUPPLY CARELINC MED EQUIP & SUPPLY 2047-4 2/2/2024 $354.00 Payment

63756 DIRECT SUPPLY INC DIRECT SUPPLY INC 2047-5 2/2/2024 $1,061.42 Payment

63757 DUSSELL'S FARM MRKT & GENHSES S omaT ALY 2047-6 2/2/2024 $6,170.00 Payment

63758 ELKHART GENERAL HOSPITAL Atin: Jenean Halsey CTC 2047-7 2/2/2024 $330.00 Payment

63759 eProvider Solutions LLC eProvider Solutions LLC 2047-8 2/2/2024 $175.00 Payment

63760 FITZSIMMONS HOSPITAL SERVICES gggﬂgg"”s HOSPITAL 20479 21212024 $3,006.22 Payment

83761 FLEXPAC FLEXPAC 2047-10 2/2/2024 $1,985,52 Payment



Date: Mar 18, 2024
Time: 16:07:08 ET

Cass County Medical Care Facility
Check Reglster

User: Jeremy Franks 2112024 - 2/29/2024 Page #2
Check Vendor Name Remit to Refarence Checki/Reversal Amount Type Status
Number Date

63762 GORDON FOOD SERVICE GORDON FOOD SERVICE 2047-11 20212024 $5,881.32  Paymenl
63763  IBEKIE FOUNDATION INC IBEKIE FOUNDATION INC 204712 21212024 $5833.33 Payment
83764 INDEED INDEED 2047-13 2/2/2024 $3,000.00 Payment
63765 JANET MEYER JANET MEYER 2047-14 2122024 $47.07 Payment
63766 LARRY BARKES LARRY BARKES 2047-15 2212024 $6,574.30 Payment
63767 LIVELY LIVELY 2047-16 21212024 $0.01 Payment
63768 MEAL SUITE MEAL SUITE 204717 2/2/2024 $513.00 Payment
63769 MED-REC SYSTEMS MED-REC SYSTEMS 2047-18 21212024 $180.00 Payment
63770 MEDLINE INDUSTRIES INC MEDLINE INDUSTRIES INC ~ 2047-19 21212024 $12,200.34 Payment
63771 MEDLINE INDUSTRIES ING MEDLINE INDUSTRIES NG~ 2047-19 21212024 $0.00  Payment Void
63772 Michiana Mobility Michiana Mobility 2047-20 2/2/2024 $2,135.00 Payment
63773 MICHIGAN DEPT OF COMM HLTH ﬂl'_‘;:’m” DEPTOFCOMM 504729 2212024 $217,767.39  Payment
63774 PERFORMANCE HEALTH SUPPLY INC F DRMANCE HEALTH 2047-22 21212024 $272.35 Payment
63775 PLANT MAGIC LLC PLANT MAGIC LLC 2047-23 20212024 $193.12  Payment
63776 QUILL CORPORATION QUILL CORPORATION 2047-24 2/2/2024 $486.40 Payment
63777 ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS 2047-25 27212024 $156.00 Payment
63778 SEMCO ENERGY SEMCO ENERGY 2047-26 2/2/2024 $2,755.15 Paymen
63779 SYSCO GRAND RAPIDS SYSCO GRAND RAPIDS 2047-27 20212024 $2,25512  Paymen
63780 VILLAGE OF CASSOPOLIS VILLAGE OF CASSOPOLIS ~ 2047-28 21212024 $370525 Payment
63781 Accushield, LLC Accushield, LLC 2069-1 2/16/2024 $249.00 Payment
63782 AIRGAS USALLC AIRGAS USALLC 2069-2 2/16/2024 $393.76 Payment
63783  ALT LONG TERM CARE CONSULTING R S e AR 2069-3 211612024 $10,882.15 Payment
63784 AT&T ATET 20694 2/16/2024 $0.63  Payment
63785 CASS COUNTY CASS COUNTY 2069-5 2116/2024 $1,148.52  Payment
63786 CASS COUNTY TRANS AUTHORITY gsﬁﬁgg.ﬂ:’\'ﬂ“ TRANS 2069-6 2116/2024 $1,57650 Payment
63787 CHERIE FILE CHERIE FILE 20697 211612024 $21.20 Payment
63788 Cintas Cintas 2069-8 2/16/2024 $126.37 Payment
63789 GORDON FOOD SERVICE GORDON FOOD SERVICE 2069.9 2116/2024 $7,005.15 Payment
63790 Halo Branded Solutions Halo Branded Solutions 2069-10 2/16/2024 $22,439.99 Payment
63731 HARDING'S MARKET HARDING'S MARKET 2069-11 2116/2024 $87.23  Paymenl
63792 HW & CO. HW & CO, 2069-12 211612024 $16,485.00 Payment



Date: Mar 18, 2024

Cass County Medical Care Facility

Time: 16:07:08 ET Check Register
User: Jeremy Franks 2/112024 - 2/29/2024 Page #3
Check Vendor Name Remit to Reference Check/Reversal Amount  Type Status
Number Date
63793 JEFF WITHERS JEFF WITHERS 2069-13 21612024 $2,700.00 Payment
63794 JEREMY FRANKS JEREMY FRANKS 2069-14 2/16/2024 $5.48  Payment
63795 KCIUSA KCI USA 2069-15 2/16/2024 $655.60 Payment
63796 LINDA L. DUCHON LINDA L. DUCHON 2069-16 2/16/2024 $5722.34  Payment
63797 MEDLINE INDUSTRIES ING MEDLINE INDUSTRIES INC ~ 2069-17 216/2024 $62.40  Payment
63798 Midwest Juice, Inc. of Michigan Midwest Juice, Inc. of Michigan ~ 2069-18 2/16/2024 $362.03 Payment
63799  Net Health Systems Inc. Net Health Systems Inc. 2069-19 2/16/2024 $892,50 Payment
63800 NUTRITION SERVICES ING NUTRITION SERVICES INC ~ 2069-20 21612024 $2,309.80 Payment
63801 PERFORMANCE HEALTH SUPPLY INC gﬁﬁﬁf\f‘mﬁ HEALTH 2069-21 2116/2024 $74.73  Payment
63802 PointClickCare PointClickCare 2069-22 2/16/2024 $3,569.50 Payment
63803 QUILL CORPORATION QUILL CORPORATION 2069-23 2116/2024 $539.50 Payment
63804 Remedi Senior Care of Michigan Remedi Senior Care of Michigan 2069-24 2/16/2024 $16,048.71 Payment
63805 Shelton Wholesale Co Shellon's Wholesale Co. 2069-25 2/16/2024 $2,352.20 Payment
63806 STATE OF MICHIGAN (NOTARY) STATE OF MICHIGAN (NOTARY) 2069-26 2/16/2024 $20.00 Payment
63807 Susan L. Winters (P41153) Susan L. Winters (P41153) 2069-27 2116/2024 $277.54 Payment
63808 SYSCO GRAND RAPIDS SYSCO GRAND RAPIDS 2069-28 2/16/2024 $1,334.83 Payment
63809 TELNET WORLDWIDE TELNET WORLOWIDE 2069.29 2/16/2024 $0.39  Payment
53810 WARNER NORCROSS + JUDD LLP LV HERNORERORG+IURE. onagiag 2116/2024 $2,554.50 Paymenl
63811 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF MI ING INASTE MANAGEMENT.OF ML apmp.g1 21612024 $2,941.62 Payment
63812 WAYSTARINC WAYSTAR INC 2069-32 2/16/2024 $100.55 Payment
63813 YEO & YEO YEO & YEO 2069-33 2/16/2024 $21,345.05 Payment
63814 DEBRA GREEN DEBRA GREEN 20701 2/23/2024 $3,168.00 Payment
63815 ABES PLUMBING INC ABES PLUMBING INC 2071-1 2/23/2024 $1,815.00 Payment
63816 BLUE CARE NETWORK BLUE CARE NETWORK 2071-2 2/23/2024 $4.457.69  Payment
63817 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD MI-0053 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD M- 507, 5 2/23/2024 $224,586.10 Payment
63818 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD-0033 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD- 5574 4 22312024 $1,642.56 Payment

0033



Date: Mar 18, 2024

Cass County Medical Care Facility

Time: 16:07:08 ET Check Register
User: Jeremy Franks 2/1/2024 - 2/29/2024 Page#4
Check Vendor Name Remit to Reference Check/Reversal Amount Type Status
Number Date
63819 CLARK HILL CLARK HILL 2071-5 2/23/2024 $60.00 Paymen
63820 CONTEMPORARY CONCEPTS CONTEMPORARY CONCEPTS  2071-6 2/23/2024 $222.09 Payment
63821 DIRECT SUPPLY INC DIRECT SUPPLY INC 2071-7 2/23/2024 $1,034.85 Payment
63822 FRONTIER FRONTIER 2071-8 2/23/12024 $309.61 Payment
63823 GORDON FOOD SERVICE GORDON FOOD SERVICE 2071-9 212312024 $17,210.42 Paymenl
63824 HARTER SUPPLY HARTER SUPPLY 2071-10 2/23/2024 $707.48  Paymenl
63825 HR ADVANTAGE ADVISORY LLC HR ADVANTAGE ADVISORY LLC 2071-11 2/23/2024 $900.00 Paymenl
63826 INDIANA MICHIGAN POWER INDIANA MICHIGAN POWER 2071-12 212312024 $5,798.63 Paymenl
63827 KCIUSA KCI USA 2071-13 2123/2024 $2,127.84 Payment
63828 KRONOS SAASHR INC KRONOS SAASHR INC 2071-14 2/23/2024 $2,801.86 Payment
638289 LEBENBOM & ROTHMAN PC LEBENBOM & ROTHMAN PC 2071-15 2/23/2024 $2,475.00 Payment
63830 MEC MEC 2071-16 2/23/2024 $155.00 Paymenl
63831 MEDLINE INDUSTRIES INC MEDLINE INDUSTRIES INC 2071-17 2/23/2024 $10,895,97 Paymenl
63832 MEDPROC DISPOSALLLC MEDPRO DISPOSAL LLC 2071-18 2123/2024 $13,387.50 Paymenl
ORIENTAL TRADING COMPANY-
63833 ORIENTAL TRADING COMPANY-OTC BRANDS INC OTC BRANDS INC 2071-19 2/23/2024 $120.21 Paymenl
63834 Pitney Bowes Pilney Bowes 2071-20 2/23/2024 $188.80 Paymeni
63835 SPIN TECHS INC SPIN TECHS INC 2071-21 212312024 $314.00 Payment
63836 STERICYCLE INC STERICYCLE INC 2071-22 2/23/2024 $777.90 Paymeni
63837 SYSCO GRAND RAPIDS SYSCO GRAND RAPIDS 2071-23 2/23/2024 $7,982.79 Payment
63838 VERIZON WIRELESS VERIZON WIRELESS 2071-24 2/23/2024 $70.72 Payment
Summary
86 check(s) Issued $706,883.66
1 check(s) voided $0.00
0 check(s) reversed $0.00
15 direct payment(s) Issued $178,053.50



CORPORATE COMPLIANCE

March 2024

There were not any corporate compliance investigations.

We will be working on processes regarding our complaint survey once the results have
arrived.

Respectfully submitted by:

YZQJ{Q-J\J\ E"M“Cg)

Rayann Franco
Director of Corporate Compliance



LAWN SERVICE CONTRACT

This Lawn Service Contract (this "Contract") is made and entered into this by

and between the Cass County Human Services Board, hereinafter referred to as "CUSTOMER" at 23770
Hospital Street, Cassopolis, M| 49031, and Kyle Mack owner of Mack Cut Lawn Service of 22801 Shurte
Street, Cassopolis, M1 49031, hereinafter referred to as "SERVICE PROVIDER".

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual promises and agreements contained
herein, the Customer hires Mack Cut Lawn Service and Mack Cut Lawn Service agrees to provide Lawn
Service to the Customer at the following location under the terms and conditions hereby agreed upon
by the parties: Cass County Medical Care Facility, 23770 Hospital Street, Cassopolis, M1 49031

1) Description of Services. Beginning on . the Service Provider will provide the following

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

services (collectively, the "SERVICES").

a) The Service Provider shall mow and edge the lawn in a competent and professional manner as
deemed necessary. The parties shall consult from time to time concerning the length and
appearance of the lawn,

b) The Service Provider shall not be responsible for applying fertilizer and/or pesticides, trimming
of shrubs and/or bushes, flowers and/or plants, or trees on the property which are lost to
casualty such as theft, aberrant weather, or disease.

All Services shall begin: Beginning on , the Service Provider will provide Services

as needed at Cass County Medical Care Facility, 23770 Hospital Street, Cassopolis M, 49031.

Payment for Services. The Service Provider shall submit an invoice monthly to Cass County Medical

Care Facility for Services provided as follows:

a) Mowing, edging of all grassy areas and blowing off the sidewalks around the building and storage
buildings for $300.00 each time.

b) Mowing of the pond area, as deemed necessary, for an additional $100.00 each time,

Term. The term of this Contract shall be three (3) vears, for the year commencing on

, and ending

Insurance. The Service Provider shall provide Cass County Medical Care Facility proof of insurance
against loss or damage under a policy or policies of fire and extended coverage insurance, including
additional perils. The Service Provider shall obtain and maintain in full force general liability and
property damage insurance with coverage of not less than $500,000.00 for injury or death to any one
person, $500,000.00 for injury or death of more than one person, and 51,000,000.00 for property
damage, covering all claims for injury to persons occurring on or around the Property. All policies must
also provide for notice by the insurance company to the Customer of any termination or cancellation
of a policy at least 30 days in advance. All policies shall name both the Service Provider and Cass
County Medical Care Facility as insured parties.

Relationship of Parties. It is understood by the parties that Mack Cut Lawn Service is an independent
contractor and is not an employee of Customer and/or Cass County Medical Care Facility and will not
provide fringe benefits, including health insurance benefits, paid vacation, or any other employee
benefit for the benefit of Mack Cut Lawn Service.




7) The Service Provider Liability. All the Service Provider's personal property, including trade fixtures, on
the Property shall be kept at the Service Provider's sole risk, and the Customer, and/or Cass County
Medical Care Facilitv shall not be responsible for any loss of business or other loss or

damage that occasioned by the acts or omissions of persons occupying adjoining property of any part
of the Property adjacent to or connected with the Property.

8) Termination of Contract. The Customer and/or Cass County Medical Care  may terminate this
Contract without notice to the Service Provider.

9) Indemnity. The Service Provider agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Customer and/or
Cass County Medical Care Facility for any liability, loss, damage, cost, or expense (including attorney
fees) based on any claim, demand, suit, or action by any party with respect to any personal injury
(including death), property damages or environmental claims or damages from any cause with respect
to the Service Provider or the Property, except for liability resulting from the intentional acts of gross
negligence of the Customer or its employees, agents, invitees or business visitors.

10) Notices. Any notices required under this Contract shall be in writing and served in person or sent by
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the addresses of the parties stated in this
Contract or to such other addresses as the party’s substitute by written notice. Notices shall be
effective on the date of the first attempted delivery.

11)Entire Agreement. This Contract contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to its
subject matter. This Contract may 'not be modified except by a written document signed by both
parties.

12) Waiver. The failure of the Customer to enforce any condition of this Contract shall not be a waiver of
its right to enforce any condition of this Contract. No provision of the Contract shall be deemed to
have been waived unless the waiver is in writing.

13)Binding Effect. This Contract shall bind and benefit the parties and their successors and permitted
assign.

In witness, where of the parties hereto, have set this hands and seals, the date and year first above
written.

CUSTOMER:
By:
Its:
SERVICE PROVIDER:
By:




Cass County Medical Care Facility
EMPLOYEE ROSTER
February 2024

Cass County Medical Care Facility had a total of (12) “Resignations/ “Terminations/Retirement”,
and (21) “New Hires”
RESIGNATIONS

Nursing/Assistant Director of Nursing - Full Time - Quit — 8/28/23-2/9/24
Nursing/RN - Full Time - Terminated — 4/8/23-2/11/24
Nursing/Director of Nursing — Full Time - Quit - 8/23/22-2/24 /24
Nursing/CNA - PRN — Terminated - 4/14/20-1/15/24
Nursing/CNA -Full Time — Quit — 1/31/24-2/13/24
Therapy/Occupational Therapist — PRN - Terminated — 6/1/21-2/14/24
Nursing/CNA - Full Time — Quit - 5/31/22-2/28/24
Nursing/CNA - Full Time - Quit - 6/26/23-2/15/24
Nursing/LPN - Full Time - Quit - 10/4/23-2/15/24
Nursing/RN - PRN - Terminated — 8/9/23-2/26 /24
Nursing/RN - PRN - Quit - 1/31/24-2/28/24
Nursing/RN - Full Time - Terminated — 1/31/24-2/22/24

NEW HIRES

Nursing/RN - Full Time - 2/5/24
Nursing/RN - PRN - 2/5/24
Nursing/LPN - Full Time — 2/5/24
Nursing/CNA - Full Time - 2/5/24
Nursing/CNA - Full Time - 2/12/24
Nursing/CNA - Full Time - 2/12/24
Dietary/Dietary Aide — Part Time - 2/12/24
Dietary/Dietary Aide - Part Time - 2/12/24
Therapy/Occupational Therapist — Full Time — 2/12/24
Nursing/Director of Nursing - Full Time - 2/19/24
Nursing/CNA - Full Time - 2/19/24
Nursing/CNA - Full Time - 2/19/24
Nursing/CNA - Full Time - 2/19/24
Nursing/CNA - Full Time - 2/19/24
Nursing/CNA - Part Time - 2/19/24
Dietary/Dietary Aide - Part Time — 2/19/24
Nursing/CNA - Full Time - 2/26 /24
Nursing/CNA - Full Time - 2/26 /24
Nursing/CNA - Full Time — 2/26 /24
Dietary/Dietary Aide - Full Time - 2/26 /24
Nursing/Registered Nurse — PRN — 2/28/24



VACANT POSITIONS /RECRUITING

RN, LPN, Administrator, Therapy (OT & PT)

RN: 13

LPN: 12

C.N.A.: 74

Maintenance: 02

Full-Time 125 Therapy 10
Part-time: 28 Administration: 25
PRN 22 Dietary: 15
Activities 09

EVS 15

TOTAL: 175



